
“October had the tremendous possibility. The 

summer's oppressive heat was a distant 

memory, and the golden leaves promised the 

world full of beautiful adventures.” 

- Sarah Guillory

GCRA Board Meeting 
October 24,2023

1



>>> November 2023 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

29 30 31 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

Admin. 
Committee 

Meeting 
12:30 pm 

Board Room

Ops. 
Committee 

Meeting 
12:30 pm 

Board Room

Veterans Day 
Office Closed

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 22 21 22 23 24 25 

Thanksgiving 
Day Office 

Closed
Office Closed

26 27 28 29 30 1 2

2

https://www.calendarlabs.com/holidays/us/veterans-day.php
https://www.calendarlabs.com/holidays/us/thanksgiving-day.php
https://www.calendarlabs.com/holidays/us/thanksgiving-day.php


>>> December 2023 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

26 27 28 29 30 1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Board 
Meeting 
12:30 pm 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

Office 
Closed 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Christmas 
Day Office 

Closed 
Office 
Closed 

3



GCRA BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2023 -12:30 P.M. 

GCRA BOARD ROOM 
301 UNIVERSITY RIDGE SUITE S-4300 

GREENVILLE, SC 29601 
Walter Moragne, Chairman 

Chairman Walter Moragne 1) Call to Order

2) Invocation

3) *Approval of the September 26, 2023, Board Minutes  (Pages 5-9)

4) Administration Committee (Pages10-11)
a) *Approval of 2024 Holiday Schedule
b) * Approval of the 2024 Employer Insurance Rates

5) Key Financial Performance Indicators Report Page 12)

6) Operations Committee (Page 13-15)

7) Other Business

8) Executive Session. When necessary, the Board convenes in Executive Session for the discussion of
negotiations incidental to proposed contractual arrangements and proposed sale or purchase of property,
the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice relates to a pending, threatened, or potential claim or
other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the
public agency in other adversary situations involving the assertion against the Redevelopment Authority
of a claim, or other matters authorized by the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.

a) Discuss Personnel Matter – No action will be taken.

9) Adjournment

4



MINUTES 
GREENVILLE COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

REGULAR SESSION  
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2023 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Walter Moragne, Chairman 
Jane Kizer, Vice-Chair  
Allen White, Treasure (virtually) 
Lawrence Black  
Barry Coleman 
David Doser  
James Hammond  
Allen White   
Lawson Wetli  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Amy Coleman 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:     John Castile, Executive Director 
Imma Nwobodu, Program Director 
Meg Macauley, Project Coordinator 
Pamela Proner, Finance Director 
Beverly Robertson, Executive Assistant/HR Manager 
Kimberly Bristol, Associate Administrative Assistant 

1. Opening and Roll Call.   The meeting was called to order by the Chairman at 12:30 p.m.

2. Invocation.

3. Approval of the June 27, 2023, Board Minutes.

On a motion by Mr. Hammond, seconded by Mr. Doser, the Board unanimously approved
the minutes of the June 27, 2023, Board meeting as presented.

4. Approval of the July 25, 2023, Board Minutes.

On a motion by Ms. Kizer, seconded by Mr. Hammond, the Board unanimously approved
the minutes of the July 25, 2023, Board meeting as presented.

5. Approval of the August 22, 2023, Board Minutes.

On a motion by Ms. Lawson, seconded by Ms. Osmer, the Board unanimously approved
the minutes of the August 22, 2023, Board meeting as presented.

5



Regular Session Minutes 
September 26, 2023 
Page 2 of 5 

6. Approval of the Fiscal Year 2023 Audit Report (Presentation).  The audit was completed
by Martin Smith and Company. Mr. White thanked the GCRA staff—especially Pamela and
her team—for a great audit. Some of the notes from the audit provided an unmodified opinion
on the compliance and internal controls for all the major programs. Strong system of internal
controls was established in operating, experienced effective financial management group, no
financial statement findings, no federal award findings and or question costs. On top of that,
the accounting firm mentioned that Greenville County Redevelopment Authority is one of the
first organizations that is ready for them to start. Ms. Proner stated that this was the third year
that GCRA has used the firm of Martin Smith and Company, and the process went very well
and seamlessly.  She felt that the finance staff and she have learned so much about what the
requirements are and how they can improve the processes going forward to accomplish what
they need for the audit.

Mr. Ken Martin of Martin, Smith and Company stated that his firm performed a financial
statement audit following generally accepted audit standards as well as governmental audit
standards. They also did a compliance audit of GCRA’s federal funding by following federal
uniform guidance and those standards and that guidance direct them in all aspects of the audit
from the preliminary planning phase then to the actual performance of the audit and then even
to the reporting that is being presented today. Mr. Martin stated that the most basic
requirement is that they gather enough independent audit evidence that they can give GCRA
an opinion as to the fairness of the financial statements. The financial statements are GCRA’s
and are management's responsibility. The auditor’s responsibility is to audit them and then
give an opinion as to whether they are fairly presented. So the focus of the audit is on gathering
audit evidence and the auditors gather a wide variety of evidence using a wide variety of audit
tests. The process really starts by looking at GCRA’s internal controls.

A strong system of internal controls is management's responsibility to establish; and then to
communicate this to the whole organization; and then to hold people accountable to follow
that system. So while the auditor is doing the audit testing, gathering audit evidence, they are
also testing GCRA’s system to make sure it's actually working the way it's supposed to be.
Mr. Martin stated that he was happy to report to the board that GCRA has a strong system in
place: good checks and balances, good processes in place, and clearly the employees have
bought into that because there were no instances where those processes weren't being
followed. The report to the Board on GCRA’s system of control and its functioning is a very
strong one. It is a good system that is working as it should.

Based on all that work, Mr. Martin stated that they were able to gather enough evidence to
give an unmodified opinion. The opinion is clean. It is the best opinion that they can give the
Board on GCRA’s financial statements. He then stated that he did not find any issues in
compliance. The financial statements provided his firm’s independent auditor’s report with a
clean, unmodified opinion. The very last thing was a report on the federal compliance, and
that, too, was clean.

6



Regular Session Minutes 
September 26, 2023 
Page 3 of 5 

On a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Doser, the Board unanimously approved the 
Fiscal Year 2023 Audit Report.  

7. GRC Update. Mr. Dent stated he wanted to give an update on GRC. He thanked GCRA for
allowing him to serve Greenville County for the past 50 years. Mr. Dent went through all of
the projects and work that Greenville Revitalization Corporation (GRC) has done.  GRC has
had many accomplishments over the years, and he has provided a report given to the Board.
He thanked the Board for their support over the years with all the projects and he especially
wanted to thank David Doser, Charlotte Osmer, and Todd Yeomans along with the current
GRC Board members Lawson Wetli and Lawrence Black. Mr. Dent went on to share where
GRC is now. He opened the floor for questions and there were no questions.

8. Approval of the Fiscal Year 2024 Consolidated Budget.    Ms. Proner presented the Fiscal
Year 2024 Consolidated budget which consists of the Carry Forward Budget and the Annual
Action Plan Budget. Carryforward Budget looks back at existing unspent funding as of June
30th.  A large portion of these unspent funds have been set aside or encumbered for projects
that have already begun.  The Annual Action Plan Budget are the funds that GCRA has been
allocated from HUD and these will be future projects.  Both of these combined comprise the
2024 Consolidated Budget.  Ms. Proner wanted to remind everyone that the Consolidated
Budget addresses all GCRA’s funding—from the federal funding to unrestricted, affordable
housing, Greenville County ARPA, and other small funding sources.

Ms. Proner stated that, with the ARPA, housing assistance, shelter outreach, and other
assistance has become a big category for GCRA and the Board will see many approvals
coming in that are allocated to the subrecipients.  But the big activity will come from the
issuance of long-term debt of 1.5 million dollars in a bank loan for the Fairview project.

On a motion by Ms. Kizer, seconded by Ms. Wetli, the Board unanimously approved the
Fiscal Year 2024 Consolidated Budget.

9. Administration Committee.

a) Approval of HOME- ARP Funds to Six (6) Subrecipients. Ms. Nwobodu stated
that the Greenville County HOME- American Rescue Plan (ARP) Allocation Plan for
a total of $4,151,357 was approved by HUD in April 2023. The approved HOME- 
ARP allocates funding for Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA), Supportive
Services, Non- Profit Operating Cost and Non- Profit Capacity Building; Acquisition
and Development of Non-Congregate Shelters; and Development of Affordable Rental
Housing and Administrative/Planning Activities. The HOME- ARP funding
application to eligible applicants was made available on May 31,2023, and specifically
for Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA), Supportive Service (SS), Non-profit
Operating Cost (NOC), and Non-profit Capacity Building Cost (NCBC). The GCRA
Board approved a total of $381,900 at the June 2023 Board meeting, to Greenville
County Human Relations Commission (GCHRC) for all four activities. Staff have

7



Regular Session Minutes 
September 26, 2023 
Page 4 of 5 

received and reviewed six applications from Greer Relief, Safe Harbor, Salvation 
Army, Unity Health on Main, Pendleton Place, and Step by Step and have made 
appropriate funding recommendations for approval. Staff had recommended approval 
for all the applicants and their requested HOME-ARP activities, but with specific 
recommended allocations. The total is $986,989. Ms. Nwobodu stated that the HOME-
ARP applications will be ongoing until funds are completely allocated. 

On a motion by Mr. Doser, the Board unanimously approved the HOME-ARP Funds 
to Six (6) Subrecipients as presented. 

10. Operations Committee.

a) Approval of Construction Cost Profile. Mr. Coleman presented a construction
profile as 6 Estelle Street in the Sterling Community. He stated that the original house
on this property was a rental and was demolished a few months ago. Staff now plan to
replace it with the Eastlake plan. The house will remain in the rental portfolio once
completed.

A question was asked regarding the rental rate once it is complete.  At the present time,
the rate cannot be established.  Rates are established based on the tenant and their
tenant income, and the number of individuals in the home.

On a motion by Mr. White, the Board unanimously approved the construction cost
profile for 6 Estell Street in Sterling as presented.

b) Approval of Mortgage Loan Fund (MLF) Financing Profile. Mr. Coleman
reviewed the proposed Mortgage Loan Fund Financing profile for 12 Sidney Wilson
Court. He stated that this is the last of the homes in the Habitat for Humanity
development in Simpsonville. The home is listed at $249,000 and GCRA will provide
the client with a $40,000 restrictive covenant for 15 years. The client will pay $2,500
down towards purchase of the home as a down payment. Mr. Smith provided
background information about the client and detailed the proposed financing terms:
funding of up to $206,000 at an interest rate of 5.0 percent for 30 years.

On a motion by Mr. Doser, the Board unanimously approved the Mortgage Loan Fund
(MLF) Financing Profile for 12 Sidney Wilson Court as presented.

11. Other Business. Mr. Castile stated that the grant from the EPA has an additional requirement
that staff do not have to do the last time.  This time staff are being required to comply and
have published that all applicants and recipients of federal financial assistance comply with
regulations prohibiting discrimination in programs, services, aid and activities. GCRA has a
policy for employment purposes.  However, this policy is separate and is for non-employee
discrimination. Castile stated that staff are working on that policy. The hope is that it will be

8



Regular Session Minutes 
September 26, 2023 
Page 5 of 5 

completed within a 6-month time frame. He stated the policy will be brought before the Board 
for review and then placed on the web site for public information. 

12. Executive Session.  On a motion by Ms. Wetli seconded by Ms. Kizer, the Board voted
unanimously to enter Executive Session at 1:13 pm to discuss a Executive Director’s
Evaluation.

On a motion by Kizer, seconded by Mr. Hammond, the Board voted to exit the Executive
Session. Executive Session adjourned at 1:31 pm.

On a motion by Ms. Kizer, seconded by Ms. Wetli, the Board unanimously approved a salary
adjustment for the Executive Director.

13. Adjournment. There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:39 p.m.

________________________________________________ 
     Secretary 

9



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: GCRA Board Members 

FROM: Amy Coleman, Administration Committee Chair  

RE: Administration Committee Meeting, October 10, 2023 

DATE: October 10, 2023 

1. Opening and Roll Call.  The Administration Committee met on Tuesday, October 10, 2023,
at 12:30 p.m. Committee members present were Lawrence Black, Amy Coleman, Walter
Moragne, and Allen White.  James Hammond was absent. Staff members present were John
Castile, Executive Director; Imma Nwobodu, Program Director; Pamela Proner, Finance
Director (virtual); Beverly Robertson, Human Resources Manager and Assistant to the
Executive Director.

Action Items: The following items which were considered by the Administration
Committee must be approved or ratified by the Board.

2. *Approval of the 2024 Holiday Schedule.  Ms. Robertson presented the 2024 Holiday
Schedule.  She stated that no additional days were added nor were any deleted. There were no
questions or discussion.

On a motion by Mr. Moragne, seconded by Mr. White, the Committee unanimously approved
the 2024 Holiday Schedule, as presented.

3. *Approval of the 2024 Employer Insurance Rates. Ms. Robertson presented the 2024
Employer Insurance Rates. Greenville County cost of medical insurance rates will increase
for 2024 by 7%.  Dental rates and vision rates will remain the same. This increase is the result
of two consecutive years of increasing medical and pharmacy claims (2022 & 2023
YTD).  The County Main has decided to absorb the increased premiums and hold the
employee contributions for 2024.  GCRA employer costs will be approximately $19,938.68
per month depending on the number of employees participating in medical plans.  This
increase is approximately an additional $1,600 per month or $19,200 per year from 2023.
Employee costs range from $0 to $593.41 per month depending on the plan and coverage
level that is chosen by the employee.

On a motion by Mr. Moragne, seconded by Mr. White, the Committee unanimously approved
the 2024 Employer Insurance Rates.

****** 

10



Administration Committee Minutes 
October 10, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

Please review the following items of business discussed at the Administration Committee 
meeting.  These items will not be discussed in the Board meeting unless there is a question or 
comment about them. 

4. Administration Reports.

a) Subrecipient Report. Ms. Nwobodu presented the subrecipient report which shows the
current subrecipients for Program Year 2023 that the Board approved in March. Some of
the subrecipients have started to draw down and the ESG has expended 9% so far and
CDBG has expended 7%. Greer Community Ministries has spent 65% of their funds.

b) Home ARP Performance Report.  Ms. Nwobodu stated that there is a new report that
will start to show up in the packet, the HOME-ARP Subrecipient Performance Report.
The total award for the HOME-ARP Subrecipients as of October 2nd is $1,368,888.00.
There have been no draws yet.

c) CDBG Timeliness Test. Ms. Nwobodu stated that as of October 2023, staff must
disburse a minimum of $1,040,552 to meet the timeliness test by May 2nd, 2024. She also
stated this number will change with program income being added to the funds and draw
downs.

5. Financial Reports. Ms. Proner stated the reports being presented to the Committee this
month is for the month of August. Ms. Proner stated that there was nothing significant in
changes to the prior month.  The rental portfolio had a net income of $15,016 for the month
and $33,519 for the year-to-date. There was a home sale at Sidney Wilson Court for
$249,000. And Brutontown’s GLDTC paid out the final amount on the contract for
infrastructure in CDBG funds of $202,000.

7. Adjournment.   There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:10 p.m.

11



August 23

Government-Wide Month
Change from 
Prior Month %

Change from 
FY23 (FYTD) %

Cash 13,412,104        Increase 1% Decrease -1%
Total Assets 38,692,381        Increase 0% Increase 1%
Notes Payable 2,349,219           Decrease 0% Decrease -1%
  Debt-to-income 2%
Net Position 32,941,724        Increase 0% Increase 0%

Net investment in capital assets 9,198,905           Decrease 0% Increase 1%
Unrestricted net assets 23,742,819        Increase 0% Decrease 0%

Governmental Funds Month YTD
Revenue 866,010              1,415,914 
Expenditures 746,778              1,264,167 
Net Income (loss) 119,232              151,747                

Rental Portfolio
Net Income (loss) 15,016                33,519 

Notes:
Homes Sale - Sidney Wilson Ct 249,000

Brutontown's GLDTC: paid out final amount on contract (infrastructure, CDBG $202k)

GCRA Financial Highlights
Month at a Glance

12



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: GCRA Board Members 

FROM: Barry Coleman, Operations Committee Chairman 

RE: Operations Committee Meeting, October 12, 2023 

DATE: October 12, 2023 

1. Opening and Roll Call. The Operations Committee met on Thursday October 12, 2023, at
12:30 p.m.  Committee members present were Barry Coleman, Jane Kizer, and Lawson
Wetli (virtually). Committee members absent were David Doser and Charlotte Osmer.
Staff present were John Castile, Executive Director; Joe Smith, Operations Director; Meg
Macauley, Project Coordinator; and Beverly Robertson, Human Resources Manager and
Assistant to the Executive Director.

************* 

Please review the following items of business discussed at the Operations Committee meeting.  
These items will not be discussed in the Board Meeting unless there is a question or comment 
about them. 

2. Operations Reports.

a. Home Sales and Rental Property Reports. Mr. Smith presented the Homes Sales
Report for the month of September. He stated that 7 Ridge Row Street is complete
and is being shown to potential buyers. 235 Whitney Street in Slater was a former
rental home but is now under contract for sale and the buyer has been approved for
a Mortgage Loan Fund financing. It is expected to close by the end of this month.
434 Lindberg Street in Slater is now for sale at $226,500. Progress is still moving
forward for the East Fairview Townhomes project in Greer. Mr. Smith showed
construction photos of the Fairview project. Work is on hold at 235 and 255
Canteen Avenue until East Fairview is completed. Mr. Smith stated he meet with
the City of Travelers Rest Council Committee on October 9th to discuss the
donation of Lot 6, West Road to GCRA. TR City Council had some questions
regarding rental versus home ownership, and they were looking at wanting to do
something in affordable housing. Mr. Smith stated that GCRA intends to build on
the lot and sale for affordable homeownership. He told the Committee that TR City

13



Operations Committee Meeting 
October 12, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

Council would be voting on it at their next meeting. GCRA still expects to construct 
a house at 1306 W. Bramlett Road through a partnership with Habitat. 

Mr. Smith presented the Rental Property Report for September. 3 Journey Lane 
remains unoccupied. This unit may be under consideration to be rented as a regular 
unit instead of an ADA unit if we are unable to find an occupant under those 
guidelines. Mr. Smith stated all other units are occupied, except the 2 units that 
were demolished.  6 Estelle Street has a bid contract on it with construction cost at 
$168,700. The Eastlake floorplan, 3 bedrooms, 2 bath is what will be built on this 
property. 105 Hodgens Drive construction bid is $162,200 and will have a 2 
bedroom, 2 bath unit placed back on that property. Mr. Smith advised that staff is 
waiting on the State to approve the demolition of the home to move forward. 

Mr. Smith then referred to the Tenant Balance Rental Report for September. There 
are three tenants that will not be able to bring the rent current and the eviction 
process will proceed with those tenants. The total past due balance for August was 
$22,688.00, and for the month of September the past due balance was $23,6169.00. 

b. Operations Activity Report. Mr. Smith presented the Operations Activity Report.
He stated the Committee should start to see draws taking place on the fourteen
townhomes at Fairview and the two new construction properties soon. He stated
partner repairs with Habitat and Rebuild have fallen behind, but staff are working
with both on completing projects. Three demolitions have been completed and two
repairs for rental complete.

c. Public Works Report. Mr. Smith presented the Public Works Report for the month
of September.  Staff have received the final PIP grant disbursement for the Senior
Activity Center project in Simpsonville and the project is now complete.  The
Emanuel Sullivan Sports Complex ADA Bathroom Building received its
Certificate of Occupancy, and the facilities are in use. Mr. Smith stated during the
final inspection, there were a few more changes that needed to be made and the
contractor is working on close-out documents to complete the project.  The Miller
& Old Mill Roads Sidewalk project is still going through environmental
assessment, and once completed the project will go out to bid. The Planning
commission and Development Committee have approved re-zoning for the Gridley
Place Townhomes in the Sans Souci area. The second reading on October 3rd was
approved and rezoning will be adopted on October 18th.  Iola Wilson Street Project
in Brutontown is still in the surveying phase with CoTransCo. The project will bid
after this is complete.

d. Loan Portfolio Report. Mr. Smith presented the 1st Quarter Delinquency Report.
There are four active foreclosures; three are in the Rehab Advance Portfolio and
one is in the Principal/Interest/Escrow Portfolio.  The Economic Development
Portfolio has one account with an active bankruptcy and two accounts with a
judgment filed. The 1st Quarter delinquency rate for GCRA was 4.1 percent.

14



Operations Committee Meeting 
October 12, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

GCRA has approved one mortgage deferment to a homeowner due to loss of 
income. GCRA has been working closely with Human Relations, Greer Relief, and 
SHARE to provide mortgage assistance to homeowners who continue to be 
impacted by COVID-19. GCRA will continue to work with each individual 
mortgage holder to assist on a case-by-case basis, offering payment plans, 
deferments, forbearance agreements, and recorded loan modifications to bring the 
accounts back to current status. GCRA continues to work with SC Help which in 
turn provides mortgage assistance to clients who qualify for their mortgage 
assistance program. Mr. Smith stated that all in all the GCRA accounts are doing 
well.  

3. Adjournment.  There being no further business, the Committee adjourned at 1:00 p.m.

15


	cover - committee 19-10
	2023 November- December Calendar
	agenda - board 23-10
	board letter
	MINUTES
	GREENVILLE COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	REGULAR SESSION
	TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2023
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Walter Moragne, Chairman
	Jane Kizer, Vice-Chair
	Allen White, Treasure (virtually)
	Lawrence Black
	Barry Coleman
	David Doser
	James Hammond
	Allen White
	Lawson Wetli
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Amy Coleman

	23-09 Board minutes
	MINUTES
	GREENVILLE COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	REGULAR SESSION
	TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2023
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Walter Moragne, Chairman
	Jane Kizer, Vice-Chair
	Allen White, Treasure (virtually)
	Lawrence Black
	Barry Coleman
	David Doser
	James Hammond
	Allen White
	Lawson Wetli
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Amy Coleman

	Admin minutes p
	01 - KPI
	23-08

	Letterhead ops
	2023 - 10 ops minutes



